
71                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                                 (OCTOBER 8) (Week 41 of 2024) 

                                     
                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

            
                                                                     
      
 Daniel A. Bittinger II          Mark E. Nelson         Keith W. Radig        Jeremy J. Taylor        Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         540-1259                     560-6542                     259-7910                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov          kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov       jtaylor@woodburycountyiowa.gov       matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held October 8, 2024, at 
4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of taking 
official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come before 
the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. Members 
of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board. 
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation on 
concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place after 
properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when approved 
by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 

                          
4:30 p.m.     Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence    
 
                     1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                  Action 
 

Consent Agenda 

 

Items 2 through 8 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one     

         motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member. 

 

                    2.  Approval of the minutes of the October 1, 2024 meeting 

 

                    3.  Approval of claims  

 

                    4.  Building Services – Kenny Schmitz 

                         Approval of items to be auctioned per Personal Property Disposition Policy 

 

                    5.  Board Administration – Karen James 

                         a.  Approval of resolution thanking and commending Jeff C. Davis for his years of service with   

                              Woodbury County 

                         b.  Approval of resolution thanking and commending Debra A. Leckband for her years of service   

                             with Woodbury County 

https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

                    6.  Board of Supervisors – Daniel Bittinger & Mark Nelson 

                         Approval of clerical amendments to the MOU passed on 10/01/24 at Board of Supervisors   

                         meeting                    

 

                    7.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                         a.  Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions  

                         b.  Approval to move a custodian position from the Sheriff Office’s budget to the Building   

                              Service’s budget 

                         c.  Approval to add a lead custodian position to the Building Services Department 

 

                    8.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                         a.  Approve the underground utility permit for Frontier Communications of Iowa, LLC to be buried   

                              in county right of way 

                         b.  Approval of permit to work in the county right of way for Mitch Parker 

 

                    End Consent Agenda 

 

                    9.  Deputy County Auditor – Michelle Skaff 

                         Approve and receive for signature the amended Fixed Asset Policy effective                  Action 

                         7-1-23 

 

                  10.  Sioux City Police Department – Captain Ryan Bertrand 

                         Approval of FY 2024 Edward Byrne (JAG) Grant Interlocal Agreement, SCPD &             Action 

                         WCSO 

 

4:45 p.m.  11.  Planning/Zoning – Daniel Priestley 

(Set time)         a.  Receive final report-Zoning Commission recommendation from 9/23/24 to                  Action 

                              approve Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from Agricultural 

                              Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District on a portion 

                              of Parcel #884726200002 for the Sandra K. Baker Revocable Trust (Applicant: 

                              Sandra K. Baker) and Jimmie L. and Renee T. Colyer (Owners) 

                         b.  Conduct first public hearing on the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone)       Action 

                              from AP to AE on a portion of Parcel #884726200002 

                         c.  Approve the 1st Reading of the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone)             Action 

 

                 12.  Board of Supervisors – Daniel Bittinger & Sky Ranch Behavioral Services – Anna Bertrand 

                        Approval of opioid remediation settlement request and proposal from Sky Ranch               Action 

                        Behavioral Services for 3 F.T.E. positions 

 

                 13.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                        a.  Approval of a construction agreement addendum with the City of Hornick                      Action 

                        b.  Receive bids for project number L-B(K19)—73-97 and return them to the                      Action 

                             county engineer for review 

                        c.  Award the bid for project L-B (K19)—73-97 if clear low bidder is found                           Action   

 

                14.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                                   Information    

               

                15.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                          Information 

 

                16.  Board Concerns                                                                                                           Information     

 



 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Subject to Additions/Deletions 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                               
MON., OCT 7       6:00 p.m.    Board of Adjustment meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom                                                   

WED., OCT 9       7:30 a.m.    SIMPCO Executive Finance Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordan Drive   

                             8:05 a.m.    Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 

                           10:00 a.m.    StarComm Board Meeting, The Security Institute, WIT Campus 

                           12:00 p.m.    District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St.                        

THU., OCT 10    12:00 p.m.    SIMPCO Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon Drive.                           

                             4:00 p.m.    Conservation Board Meeting, Brown’s Lake – Bigelow Park 

WED., OCT 16   10:30 a.m.    Western Iowa Tourism Region Meeting, LaunchPad Museum, 623 Pearl St. 

                          12:00 p.m.    Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 

                            1:30 p.m.    Local Emergency Planning Committee Meeting, The Security Institute at WITCC  

                             4:30 p.m.    Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   

WED., OCT 23     2:30 p.m.    Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 

MON., OCT 28     6:00 p.m.    Zoning Commission Meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom          

THU., OCT 24    11:00 a.m.    Siouxland Regional Transit Systems (SRTS) Board Meeting, SIMPCO Office, 1122 Pierce St.  

MON., NOV 4      6:00 p.m.     Board of Adjustment meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom 

WED., NOV 6    11:00 a.m.     Loess Hills Alliance Stewardship Meeting, Pisgah, Iowa  

                            1:00 p.m.     Loess Hills Alliance Executive Meeting 

                            4:45 p.m.     Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.  

 WED., NOV 13   7:30 p.m.     SIMPCO Executive-Finance Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordon Drive    

                            8:05 a.m.     Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 

                          12:00 p.m.     District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St. 

                            6:30 p.m.     911 Service Board Meeting, Public Safety Center, Climbing Hill                         

THU., NOV 14   12:00 p.m.     SIMPCO Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon Drive.                             

                            4:00 p.m.     Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 

  
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable accommodations 
for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national origin, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to access the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



OCTOBER 1, 2024, FORTIETH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, October 1, 2024, at 4:30 p.m.  Board members present were Ung, Radig, Taylor, 
Bittinger II, and Nelson. Staff members present were Heather Satterwhite-Van Sickle, Executive Secretary/Public Bidder, 
Melissa Thomas, Human Resources Director, and Patrick Gill, Auditor/Clerk to the Board.  
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
 
1.  Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve the agenda for October 1, 2024.  Carried 5-0.   Copy filed. 
 

Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve the following items by consent: 
 
2.  To approve minutes of the September 24, 2024, meeting.  Copy filed. 
  
3.  To approve the claims totaling $842,157.25.  Copy filed. 
 
4a. To approve the property tax refund request for Raymond Svendsen, parcel #894729184021, in the amount of 

$318.00.  Copy filed. 
 
4b. To approve the property tax refund request for Closing Siouxland, parcel #894735167001, in the amount of 

$648.00.  Copy filed. 
 
5. To approve request of Jeff Davis to remain on the county dental insurance.  Copy filed. 
 
Carried 5-0. 
 
8. Motion by Taylor second by Ung to receive for signatures a Resolution for Proclamation for Domestic Violence 

Awareness Month.  Carried 5-0. 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,802 

PROCLAMATION FOR DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH 
 

WHEREAS, domestic violence is a serious crime affecting individuals and families in all Siouxland 

communities; all races, ages, income levels, lifestyles and genders; and in fact, is probably affecting 

someone you know; and every 9 seconds someone experiences the crime of domestic violence; and 

WHEREAS, one in three women and one in nine men will be a victim of violence in their lifetime; 

domestic violence violates an individual’s human rights by destroying dignity, security, and self-

worth due to the systematic use of physical, emotional, sexual, psychological, and economic 

control or abuse; SafePlace works every day to help end these acts of violence and to help rebuild 

the lives of the survivors; and 

WHEREAS, in Siouxland, SafePlace is available 24 hours a day every day of the year and last year 

responded to nearly 2000 victims fleeing domestic abuse and despite high census and a global 

pandemic, no one in an unsafe situation was turned away; and 

WHEREAS, the impact of domestic violence affects all of the members of the community, and 

only a coordinated community response will put a stop to these atrocious crimes and assure 

funding is continuously available to provide these lifesaving services; and 



October 1, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 2 
 

 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, Woodbury County Board of Supervisors, do hereby proclaim the month of 

October, 2024 as 

“DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH” 

in Woodbury County, Iowa and urge all citizens to actively participate in the scheduled 

events and programs and to think about the fact that it is someone you know. 

 

BE IT SO RESOLVED this 1st day of October, 2024. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
6a. A public hearing was held at 4:35 p.m. for the sale of parcel #894726178006, 900 Cornelia St.  The Chairperson 

called on anyone wishing to be heard. 
 
 Motion by Ung second by Taylor to close the public hearing.  Carried 5-0. 
 
 Motion by Taylor second by Ung to approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution for the sale of 

parcel #894726178006, 900 Cornelia St., to Nikolas Noyes and Adam Wilcox, 201 W. Amherst St., Marcus, IA, 
51035 for $100.00 plus recording fees.  Carried 5-0. 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,798 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, that the offer at public auction of: 
 
By      Nickolas R. Noyes and Adam Wilcox                                            in the sum of  One Hundred and 00/100 
($100.00)------------------------ ------------------------------dollars. 
 
For the following described real estate, To Wit: 
 
Parcel #894726178006 
Lot Forty (40) Block Seven (7) Eden Park Addition, City of Sioux City, Woodbury County, Iowa 
(900 Cornelia Street) 
 
Now and included in and forming a part of the City of Sioux City, Iowa, the same is hereby accepted: said 
Amount being a sum LESS than the amount of the general taxes, interests, costs and penalties against the said Real 
Estate. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that payment is due by close of business on the day of passage of this resolution or this sale is null 
and void and this resolution shall be rescinded. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that per Code of Iowa Section 569.8(3 & 4), a parcel the County holds by tax deed shall not be 
assessed or taxed until transferred and upon transfer of a parcel so acquired gives the purchaser free title as to 
previously levied or set taxes.  Therefore, the County Treasurer is requested to abate any taxes previously levied or 
set on this parcel(s). 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chairman of this Board be and he is hereby authorized to execute a Quit Claim 
Deed for the said premises to the said purchaser. 
 
SO DATED this 1st Day of October, 2024.                                                                                                               

    WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 



October 1, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 3 
 

 

 

 

 Copy filed. 
 
6b. A public hearing was held at 4:37 p.m. for the sale of parcel #894726177013, 931 Cornelia St.  The Chairperson 

called on anyone wishing to be heard. 
 
 Motion by Taylor second by Ung to close the public hearing.  Carried 5-0. 
 
 Motion by Taylor second by Ung to approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution for the sale of 

parcel #894726177013, 931 Cornelia St., to Nickolas Noyes and Adam Wilcox, 201 W. Amherst St., Marcus, IA, 
51035, for $100.00 plus recording fees.  Carried 5-0. 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,799 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, that the offer at public auction of: 
 
By      Nickolas R. Noyes and Adam Wilcox                                            in the sum of  One Hundred and 00/100 
($100.00)------------------------ ------------------------------dollars. 
 
For the following described real estate, To Wit: 
 
Parcel #894726178006 
Lot Fourteen (14) Block Six (6) Eden Park Addition, City of Sioux City, Woodbury County, Iowa 
(931 Cornelia Street) 
 
Now and included in and forming a part of the City of Sioux City, Iowa, the same is hereby accepted: said 
Amount being a sum LESS than the amount of the general taxes, interests, costs and penalties against the said Real 
Estate. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that payment is due by close of business on the day of passage of this resolution or this sale is null 
and void and this resolution shall be rescinded. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that per Code of Iowa Section 569.8(3 & 4), a parcel the County holds by tax deed shall not be 
assessed or taxed until transferred and upon transfer of a parcel so acquired gives the purchaser free title as to 
previously levied or set taxes.  Therefore, the County Treasurer is requested to abate any taxes previously levied or 
set on this parcel(s). 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chairman of this Board be and he is hereby authorized to execute a Quit Claim 
Deed for the said premises to the said purchaser. 
 
SO DATED this 1st Day of October, 2024. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
6c. A public hearing was held at 4:39 p.m. for the sale of parcel #894726178011, 604 Glass St.  The Chairperson called 

on anyone wishing to be heard. 
 
 Motion by Taylor second by Ung to close the public hearing.  Carried 5-0. 
 
 Motion by Taylor second by Ung to approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution for the sale of 

parcel #894726178011, 917 Glass St., to Nickolas Noyes and Adam Wilcox, 201 W. Amherst St., Marcus, IA 51035, 
for $100.00 plus recording fees.  Carried 5-0. 

 



October 1, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 4 
 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

RESOLUTION #13,800 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, that the offer at public auction of: 
 
By      Nickolas R. Noyes and Adam Wilcox                                            in the sum of  One Hundred and 00/100 
($100.00)------------------------ ------------------------------dollars. 
 
For the following described real estate, To Wit: 
 
Parcel #894726178011 
Lot Fourteen (14) Block Seven (7) Eden Park Addition, City of Sioux City, Woodbury County, Iowa 
(917 Glass Street) 
 
Now and included in and forming a part of the City of Sioux City, Iowa, the same is hereby accepted: said 
Amount being a sum LESS than the amount of the general taxes, interests, costs and penalties against the said Real 
Estate. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that payment is due by close of business on the day of passage of this resolution or this sale is null 
and void and this resolution shall be rescinded. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that per Code of Iowa Section 569.8(3 & 4), a parcel the County holds by tax deed shall not be 
assessed or taxed until transferred and upon transfer of a parcel so acquired gives the purchaser free title as to 
previously levied or set taxes.  Therefore, the County Treasurer is requested to abate any taxes previously levied or 
set on this parcel(s). 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chairman of this Board be and he is hereby authorized to execute a Quit Claim 
Deed for the said premises to the said purchaser. 
 
SO DATED this 1st Day of October, 2024. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
6d. A public hearing was held at 4:41 p.m. for the sale of parcel #894728102006, 208 14th St.  The Chairperson called 

on anyone wishing to be heard. 
 
 Motion by Taylor second by Ung to close the public hearing.  Carried 5-0. 
 
 Motion by Taylor second by Ung to approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution for the sale of 

parcel #894728102006, 208 14th St., to Meg Andrews 2017 Revocable Trust, 259 Whitney St., San Fransisco, CA, 
94131-2726 for $4,000.00 plus recording fees.  Carried 5-0. 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,801 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, that the offer at public auction of: 
 
By      Meg Andrews 2017 Revocable Trust                                            in the sum of  Four Thousand and 00/100 
($4,000.00)------------------------ ------------------------------dollars. 
 
For the following described real estate, To Wit: 
 



October 1, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 5 
 

 

 

 

Parcel #894728102006 
The West Twenty-five feet (W 25’) of the East Fifty feet (E 50’) of Lot One (1) and the West Twenty-five feet (W 
25’) of the East Fifty feet (E 50’) of the North Eighteen and one-half feet (N 18 ½’) of Lot Two (2), Block Seventy-
nine (79), Sioux City East Addition, City of Sioux City, Woodbury County, Iowa 
(208 14th Street) 
 
Now and included in and forming a part of the City of Sioux City, Iowa, the same is hereby accepted: said 
Amount being a sum LESS than the amount of the general taxes, interests, costs and penalties against the said Real 
Estate. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that payment is due by close of business on the day of passage of this resolution or this sale is null 
and void and this resolution shall be rescinded. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that per Code of Iowa Section 569.8(3 & 4), a parcel the County holds by tax deed shall not be 
assessed or taxed until transferred and upon transfer of a parcel so acquired gives the purchaser free title as to 
previously levied or set taxes.  Therefore, the County Treasurer is requested to abate any taxes previously levied or 
set on this parcel(s). 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chairman of this Board be and he is hereby authorized to execute a Quit Claim 
Deed for the said premises to the said purchaser. 
 
SO DATED this 1st Day of October, 2024. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
7a. A public hearing was held at 4:45 p.m. for the proposed revisions to Woodbury County Ordinance #56, including 

amending Sections 5.2.D, 6.1.A, 6.2, 7, and 7.1.C, which regulate Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems (C-
WECS) in unincorporated Woodbury County.  The amendments address changes to the C-WECS application 
process, submission requirements, siting and design standards, including setbacks, protected areas, setback waiver 
limitations, as well as updates to discontinuance and decommissioning plan requirements.  The Chairperson called 
on anyone wishing to be heard. 

 
 Motion by Nelson second by Taylor to receive a letter from MidAmerican Energy Company regarding the proposed 

wind ordinance amendment.  Carried 5-0.  Copy Filed. 
 
 Motion by Nelson second by Taylor to receive a letter from Galen and Jill Moore, Ames, IA, regarding the proposed 

wind ordinance amendment.  Carried 5-0.  Copy Filed. 
 
 Lyle Fixel, Kingsley, Jeff Moss, Anthon, Brittini Vander Molen, Anthon, Kelsey Ballard, MidAmerican Energy, Daniel 

Hair, Hornick, Larry Filipi, Anthon, Steve Corey, Salix, Doyle Turner, Moville, and Kim Alexander, Smithland, offered 
comments during the public hearing. 

 
Motion by Taylor, second by Ung to close the public hearing.  Carried 5-0. 
 

7b. Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve the 3rd and final reading of the ordinance amendments.  Carried 5-0.  
Copy filed. 

 
7c. Motion by Ung second by Taylor to adopt Ordinance #79, ordinance amendments to Ordinance #56.  Carried 5-0.   
 
9. Motion by Radig second by Nelson to approve the MOU with the Attorney’s Union to incentivize new hires and 

retain existing employees. 
 

Kenny Schmitz, Building Services Director, Tina Bertrand, County Treasurer, Todd Copley, AFCSME 61 President, 
Corey Davis, CWA 7103 President, Chad Sheehan, County Sheriff, Melissa Thomas, Human Resources Director, 



October 1, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 6 
 

 

 

 

Michelle Skaff, Deputy County Auditor, Athena Ladeas, Assistant County Attorney, and Dan Heissel, Conservation 
Director, addressed the Board with comments and questions in regard to a proposed memorandum of 
understanding addressing retention and recruitment in the county attorney’s office. 
 
Carried 4-1 on a roll call vote; Ung was opposed.  Copy filed. 
 

10a. Motion by Radig second by Taylor to approve the federal aid project agreement for projects #STP-S-C097(153)—
5E-97.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 

 
10b. Motion by Radig second by Taylor to approve the plans for project #STP-S-C097(153)—5E-97.  Carried 5-0.  Copy 

filed. 
 
10c. Motion by Taylor second by Ung to approve the federal aid project agreement for projects #BROS-C097(150)—8J-

97.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
10d. Motion by Radig second by Ung to approve the plans for project #BROS-C097(150)—8J-97.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
11. Motion by Taylor second by Bittinger to approve $100,000.00 as a group purchase threshold retroactive to 7-1-

2023 and direct Deputy Skaff to amend the fixed asset policy and bring back for board approval.  Carried 5-0.  Copy 
filed. 

 
12a. The Board discussed the future of Rolling Hills Services Region physical property.  Copy filed. 
 
12b.  Motion by Taylor second by Nelson to postpone action to approve funding Sky Ranch Behavioral Services request 

in the amount of $181,986.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
13. Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
14. Tina Bertrand, County Treasurer, Trevor Bass, Assistant County Attorney, Dan Heissel, Conservation Director, Pat 

Gill, County Auditor, and Athena Ladeas, Assistant County Attorney addressed the board. 
 
15. There were no Board concerns. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until October 8, 2024. 
  
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Woodbury County Personal Property Disposition Form

 DATE:

A slicer is in 

cells B9 

Fill in the fields below (* REQUIRED):

For Office Use Only:

Item Description*

PHONE:

NAME:

DEPARTMENT:

Person icon is 

in this cell

Envelope is in 

this cell

Phone icon is 

in this cell

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE:

Current Location*

Estimated Value*

Auction Reserve

County Asset Number

Serial/VIN Number

Year

Make/Model

GovDeals ID #

Sale Price

Date

Notes



 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 

RESOLUTION NO.______ 

 

A RESOLUTION THANKING AND COMMENDING 

 

Jeff C. Davis 
 

FOR HIS sErVICE TO WOODBURY COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Jeff C. Davis has capably served Woodbury County as an employee 

of the Juvenile Detention Department for 40 years from July 3, 1984 to October 8, 
2024. 
 

WHEREAS, the service given by Jeff C. Davis as a Woodbury County employee, 

has been characterized by his dedication to the best interests of the citizens of 
Woodbury County; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA that the 

undersigned members of this Board thanks and commends Jeff C. Davis for his 
years of service to Woodbury County; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is the wish of all those signing below 

that the future hold only the best for this very deserving person, Jeff C. Davis. 
 

BE IT SO RESOLVED this 8th day of October 2024. 

 
 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 
_________________________________ ______________________________ 
Matthew A. Ung, Chairman               Jeremy J. Taylor, Member 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ______________________________ 
 Daniel A. Bittinger II, Member    Keith W. Radig, Member 
 
 
 
                                          ________________________ 
                                               Mark E. Nelson, Member 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Patrick F. Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 
 
 



 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 

RESOLUTION NO.______ 

 

A RESOLUTION THANKING AND COMMENDING 

 

Debra A. Leckband 
 

FOR HER sErVICE TO WOODBURY COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Debra A. Leckband has capably served Woodbury County as an 

employee of the Woodbury County Library for 28 years from August 19,1996 to 
October 31, 2024 
 

WHEREAS, the service given by Debra A. Leckband as a Woodbury County 

employee, has been characterized by her dedication to the best interests of the 
citizens of Woodbury County; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA that the 

undersigned members of this Board thanks and commends Debra A. Leckband for 
her years of service to Woodbury County; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is the wish of all those signing below 

that the future hold only the best for this very deserving person, Debra A. Leckband. 
 

BE IT SO RESOLVED this 8th day of October 2024. 

 
 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 
 
_________________________________ ______________________________ 
Matthew A. Ung, Chairman               Jeremy J. Taylor, Member 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ______________________________ 
 Daniel A. Bittinger II, Member    Keith W. Radig, Member 
 
 
 
                                          ________________________ 
                                               Mark E. Nelson, Member 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Patrick F. Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 
 
 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

10/03/2024 10/08/2024

Supervisor Bittinger & Nelson

The Board of Supervisors discussed the revised MOU for the county attorney's union on 10/01/2024. In the board meeting, clerical 
items needed to be changed and the majority of the board agreed to approve the changes as publicy discussed. 

However, at the time to vote on the new revised MOU, the clerical amendments were not added to the original motion to be voted 
on.

This consent agenda item is to approve the clerical amendments per the majority of the Supervisor board. 

The County Attorney's office was asked what would be the proper parliamentarian procedure to approve the clerical changes that 
were not in the original agenda item motion and approved by a 4-1 vote. They stated that a cosent agenda item would be proper 
since the clerical amendments were not a substantial change to the MOU just clarifiying phrases & dates.  

 

 Please see the following attachments: 

1: Revised Oct. 2024 MOU Proposal (This MOU has the clerical amendment changes that were discussed publicy and agreed 
upon by the majority of the Supervisor board at the 10/01/2024 meeting.)

The clerical amendments to the Revised Sept. 2024 MOU Proposal are as follow and reflected in the new Revised Oct. 2024 MOU 
Proposal:

- In the first paragraph at the top of page one:
    1) All "September 2024" dates are changed to "October 2024" dates.
    2) The former effective date of "September 25, 2024" is now "October 3, 2024"

-Under item 2.F
     1) The phrase "as stated in the current 2024-2027 Union Contract" was removed. 

- Under section 4: 
      1) The phrase "two (2) new attorneys" was changed to "one (1) new attorney" to reflect that only one new attorney has been 
hired. 

Clerical amendments to the MOU passed on 10/01/2024 at Board of Supervisors meeting. 

✔

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

N/A

Motion to accept clerical amendents to the MOU as disscussed by the Board of Supervisors and in the public 
record on 10/01/2024.

Motion to accept clerical amendents to the MOU as disscussed by the Board of Supervisors and in the 
public record on 10/01/2024.



1  

October 2024 Memorandum of Understanding 

This October 2024 Memorandum of Understanding ("October 2024 MOU") entered into 

by and between Woodbury County, Iowa ("Employer") and the American Federation of State, 

County and Municipal Employees, Council 61 Local 3462, Woodbury County Assistant County 

Attorneys and Victim Witness Coordinator ("Union"), effective October 03, 2024 ("Effective 

Date") and continuing until such time as the parties shall agree otherwise: 

 

1. The current Master Contract between Employer and Union is effective July 1, 2024 

through June 30, 2027 ("2024-2027 Union Contract"). 

2. Due to the continued shortage of personnel and to assist with recruitment and 

retention, Employer agrees as follows: 

a. As of the Effective Date, Appendix A of the 2024-2027 Union Contract shall be 

stricken in its entirety and the new Appendix A attached to this October 2024 

MOU shall be inserted in its place. 

 

b. As of the Effective Date, Article VI, Section 2 Wage Schedule Placement and 

Advancement shall be amended to state as follows (changes from 2024-2027 Union 

Contract in highlighted text): 

 

The Appendix A salary schedule for Assistant County Attorneys has ten 

(10) steps. Each step is designed to allow advancement after six (6) 

months. Advancement subject to the conditions in the next paragraph 

shall be done every six (6) months (based on the hire anniversary date) for 

the Assistant County Attorney. 

Newly hired Assistant County Attorneys shall be placed on the Appendix 

A salary schedule in accordance with the terms of 2024-2027 Union 

Contract. 

 
As of the Effective Date, all current Assistant County Attorneys shall be 

placed on the appropriate step according to this October 2024 MOU and be 

eligible for the other wage increases and benefits provided under this 

October 2024 MOU. 

 

An Assistant County Attorney shall not be advanced if his/her evaluation 

is rated unsatisfactory overall. If an Assistant County Attorney is not 

advanced on step because his/her performance is rated unsatisfactory 

overall, the Assistant County Attorney shall be given recommendations to 

improve his/her performance and shall be re-evaluated within six (6) 

months following the date he/she was scheduled to advance. If upon re- 

evaluation the Assistant County Attorney performance is rated higher than 

unsatisfactory overall, the Assistant County Attorney shall be granted 

his/her step increase and shall be paid retroactive to the date he/she was 

scheduled to receive a step increase. 



2  

c. As of the Effective Date, Article VI of the 2024-2027 Union Contract shall be 

amended to add a new Section 15 that states as follows: 

 

Section 15   Attorney Days 

As of the effective date of this MOU, each employee will receive five (5) 

attorney days. Thereafter, each employee will receive five (5) attorney days on 

July 1 of each contract year. The attorney days will be scheduled by mutual 

agreement between the employee and the County Attorney or his/her First 

Assistant Deputy. The attorney days shall not be carried over from contract 

year to contract year, nor shall they be granted, if unused, to any employee 

upon retirement, termination or discharge. No employee will be permitted to 

work his/her attorney day(s). Newly hired Assistant County Attorneys shall 

work six (6) months prior to being eligible to use their five (5) attorney days. 

These vacation days shall be taken in no less than half (1/2) day increments.  

d. As of the Effective Date and until the Employer reaches full staffing level of seventeen 

(17) attorneys or the end of the term of the 2024-2027 Union Contract, whichever is 

earlier, every six (6) months (based on the hire anniversary date), Assistant County 

Attorneys may elect to have any accrued but unused vacation hours exceeding his/her 

carryover limit be paid out in lieu of taking vacation time off. 

e. As of the Effective Date and until the end of the term of the 2024-2027 Union 

Contract, Assistant County Attorneys may work remotely one day per work week in 

the same practice currently being used by employees to schedule vacation time off. 

The County Attorney may require rescheduling of the remote work if in his/her 

judgment the scheduling of the remote work will adversely affect the efficient 

operation of the County Attorney's Office. Newly hired Assistant County Attorneys 

shall work one (1) year prior to being eligible to use the remote work option. The 

County Attorney may deny an employee’s request to work from home based on that 

employee’s performance issues. The County Attorney shall be required to submit such 

denial in writing with proper cause which shall be subject to the grievance procedures as 

stated in the current 2024-2027 Union Contract. 
 

f. As of the Effective Date, the Employer shall pay a retention bonus to each Assistant 

County Attorney of $1,500.00 within the next pay period of the Effective Date and 

thereafter every six (6) months, unless prior to the pay period the Employer reaches 

full staffing level of seventeen (17) attorneys or the end of the term of the 2024-2027 

Union Contract, whichever is earlier. Newly hired attorneys shall receive a $3,000 

bonus after completion of their first year of employment. Therefore, newly hired 

attorneys shall only become eligible for a retention bonus after completion of one year 

of employment. 

g. As of the Effective Date, the Employer will advance the negotiated raise of 3.0% for FY 
25/26 and 3.0% for FY 26/27 at the rate of 1.5% increases every six (6) months as set out 
in Appendix A Salary Schedule beginning January 1, 2025 and continuing to the end of 
the term of the 2024-2027 Union Contract. 



3  

    3. The Union is in agreement with these voluntary wage increases and fringe benefit offerings. 

 

   4. The Union is in agreement that the terms of this MOU shall be made retroactive to September 1, 

2024 so as to be applicable to the one (1) new attorney recently hired by the Woodbury County 

Attorney’s Office.   

 

    5. All other terms of the 2024-2027 Union Contract shall remain in effect through June 30,       

                 2027. To the extent there is a conflict between this October 2024 MOU and the terms of   

  the 2024-2027 Union Contract, this October 2024 MOU shall control. 

 

 6.        The Union recognizes that these wage increases and benefits provided by this October  

   2024 MOU are voluntary by Employer and not required by the 2024-2027 Union Contract.   

  Employer may determine at any time in its sole discretion, upon proper Human Resources  

  and Board of Supervisor action, to eliminate these wage increases and benefits in its  

  entirety. Union agrees that any decision by Employer to eliminate these wage    

  increases and benefits in its entirety, so long as such eliminations do not result in providing      

  less than what is required by the 2024- 2027 Union Contract, would not form the basis for  

  a grievance or prohibited practice complaint. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this October 2024 MOU to be 

executed by their duly authorized representatives effective as of the date above. 

 

 

 

 

 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, 

COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL 

EMPLOYEES COUNCIL 61 LOCAL 3462 

WOODBURY COUNTY ASSISTANT 

COUNTY ATTORNEYS AND VICTIM 

WITNESS COORDINATOR 

 

 

  By:  __________________   By: ___________________________ 

 

 October _________, 2024   October _________, 2024



4  

APPENDIX A 

Wage and Salary Schedule 

 

2024-2025 

 

Assistant County Attorneys effective July 1, 2024 - 9.0% 

 

Step 1 $83,055 

Step 2 $87,048 

Step 3 $91,032 

Step 4 $95,024 

Step 5 $102,613 

Step 6 $106,602 

Step 7 $110,591 

Step 8 $114,584 

Step 9 $118,573 

Step 10 $126,597 

 

Assistant County Attorneys will be advanced in steps in accordance with the language in Article 

VI. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5  

APPENDIX A 

Wage and Salary Schedule 

 

2025-2026 

 

Assistant County Attorneys effective January 1, 2025 - 1.5% 

 

Step 1 $84,301 

Step 2 $88,354 

Step 3 $92,397 

Step 4 $96,449 

Step 5 $104,152 

Step 6 $108,201 

Step 7 $112,250 

Step 8 $116,303 

Step 9 $120,352 

Step 10 $128,496 

 

Assistant County Attorneys will be advanced in steps in accordance with the language in Article 

VI. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6  

APPENDIX A 

Wage and Salary Schedule 

 

2025-2026 

 

Assistant County Attorneys effective July 1, 2025- 1.5% 

 

Step 1 $85,566 

Step 2 $89,679 

Step 3 $93,783 

Step 4 $97,896 

Step 5 $105,714 

Step 6 $109,824 

Step 7 $113,934 

Step 8 $118,048 

Step 9 $122,157 

Step 10 $130,423 

 

Assistant County Attorneys will be advanced in steps in accordance with the language in Article 

VI.



7  

APPENDIX A 

Wage and Salary Schedule 

 

2026 - 2027 

 

Assistant County Attorneys effective January 1, 2026- 1.5% 

 

Step 1 $86,849 

Step 2 $91,024 

Step 3 $95,190 

Step 4 $99,364 

Step 5 $107,300 

Step 6 $111,471 

Step 7 $115,643 

Step 8 $119,819 

Step 9 $123,989 

Step 10 $132,379 

 

 

Assistant County Attorneys will be advanced in steps in accordance with the language in 

Article VI. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



8  

VI. APPENDIX A 

Wage and Salary Schedule 

 

2026 - 2027 

 

Assistant County Attorneys effective July 1, 2026- 1.5% 

 

Step 1 $88,152 

Step 2 $92,389 

Step 3 $96,618 

Step 4 $100,854 

Step 5 $108,910 

Step 6 $113,143 

Step 7 $117,378 

Step 8 $121,616 

Step 9 $125,849 

Step 10 $134,366 

 

 

Assistant County Attorneys will be advanced in steps in accordance with the language in 

Article VI. 

 



     

     

     

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT         
                                                                             

MEMORANDUM OF PERSONNEL TRANSACTIONS                                                       
                          
                                         * PERSONNEL ACTION CODE:          
DATE:  _October 8th, 2024__                  A- Appointment                      R-Reclassification 

                                                                                   T - Transfer   E- End of Probation 

                                                                                        P - Promotion   S - Separation 

      D - Demotion   O – Other 

 

TO:  WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 

NAME 

 

DEPARTMENT 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE 

 

JOB TITLE 

SALARY 

REQUESTED 

 

% 

INCREASE 

 

* 

 

REMARKS 

Murray, 

Michael 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

10-04-2024 

Courthouse 

Security 

Officer  

   

S 

 

Separation 

 

Gilreath, 

Jacob 

 

Secondary Roads 

 

10-14-2024 

 

Civil Engineer 

Intern 

 

 

$87,500.00/year 

 

9%=$6,879.20/

year 

 

O 

Salary 

Increase per 

County 

Engineer. 
 

 

Feiler, Mary 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

10-14-2024 

 

Civilian 

Lieutenant 

 

 

 

$3,823.67/bi-

weekly 

 
 

3.25%=$120.36

/bi-weekly 

 

 

R 

3.25% 6 Year 

Wage Increase. 

Anniversary 

Date:            

10-15-2024. 

 

 

Metzgar, 

Matthew 

 

 

 

 

Attorney’s Office 

 

 

10-14-2024 

 

Assistant 

County Attorney 

 

 

 

$102,613.00/year 

 

 

 
8%=$7,589.00/

year 

 

 

R 

Per AFSCME: 

From Step 6 to 

Step 7. 

Anniversary 

Date:  

10-18-2024. 

 

 

Lafave, Dawn 

 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

10-28-2024 

 

 

Civilian Jailer 

 

 

$33.24/hour 

 

 
12%=$3.46/ 

hour 

 

 

R 

Per CWA: 

From Senior to 

Master Officer. 

Anniversary 

Date:  

10-31-2024 

 

Raymond, 

Patricia 

 

 

Treasurer 

 

06-24-2024 

 

% Deputy - MV 

 

$83,698.71/year 

 
5%=$5,579.91/

year 

 

 

 

R 

 

Increase from 

70% to 75% 

Deputy. 

 

 

       

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

       

 

APPROVED BY BOARD DATE:          ______________________________  

 

       

 

MELISSA THOMAS, HR DIRECTOR:        ______________________________ 

           

 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

10/02/2024 10/08/2024

Melissa Thomas HR Director 

✔

✔

Approval to move a custodian position from the Sheriff Office's budget to the Building Service's budget.  

This agenda item would move the position from budget line 0001-05-1050-000-10007 to 0001-16-9103-000-10007. 

This position was originally part of the Building Services department and this request is to move it back to that 
budget. 

0

Approve the motion

Motion to deauthorize the Sheriff Office's Jail custodian position and authorize a Building Services custodian 
position, including transferring the remaining budget.



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

10/03/2024 10/08/2024

Melissa Thomas HR Director 

✔

✔

Approval to add a lead custodian position to the Building Services department 

Staffing requirements have changed due to the opening of the new Law Enforcement Center, adding another 
lead custodian position is one of those changes. 

Once this position is filled the custodian position budgeted for will not be back filled and eventually 
deauthorized. 

The financial impact would be $2017.60, and this can be covered by the current budget.

Approve the motion

Motion to approve and authorize and hiring of Building Services lead custodian position. 























WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

10/3/2024 10/8/24

Michelle Skaff - Deputy Auditor

✔

✔

Approve and Receive for Signature the Amended Fixed Asset Policy

The Fixed Asset Policy for approval includes amendments to include a group asset threshold and edits to 
include audited fixed asset procedures and processes. 

In 10-1-2024, the board gave direction to add a $100,000 threshold for group purchases retroactive to 
7-1-2023.   In review of the fixed asset policy, other minor changes were made to conform to the audited 
procedures and processes.

na

To approve and receive for signature the amended fixed asset policy effective 7-1-2023.

Motion by second by to approve and receive for signature the amended fixed asset policy effective 7-1-2023.



C:\Users\kjames\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\CZPU

3V0M\10-8-24 FIXED ASSET INVENTORY POLICY.doc 

FIXED ASSET INVENTORY POLICY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
POLICY 
It is the policy of Woodbury County to have a comprehensive fixed asset inventory system.  The 
Woodbury County Auditor shall be responsible for developing, implementing, and maintaining 
the fixed asset inventory. 
 

SCOPE 
All property of Woodbury County, which is non-consumable, has a value exceeding the 
threshold per fixed asset classification defined below, and a life expectancy of more than one 
year, shall be included in the fixed asset inventory. 
 

CLASSIFICATION/THRESHOLD 
Fixed assets shall be classified in one of the five major groups of land, building, improvements 
other than buildings, machinery and equipment, and construction in progress.  An asset will not 
be reported in the General Fixed Asset Account Group (GFAAG) unless the value of the asset is 
equal to or exceeds the following threshold by classification: 
 

Classification     Threshold 
 Land      any land retained for County use 
 Buildings*     $  5,000 
 Improvements     $50,000 
 Machinery and Equipment   $  5,000 
  - Equipment – Vehicles  
  - Equipment – Computer 
  - Equipment – Furniture 
  -Equipment – Other  
 Group Purchases    $100,000 
 Infrastructure     $5,000 
 
*Improvements to buildings will only be capitalized if deemed a major improvement or addition. 

 
REQUIRED DATA 
At a minimum, the following data must be captured for each asset purchased from all funding 
sources; the department, class, location, description, serial number or other identification 
number (if applicable), Vendor Name and Number, date acquired, cost,   Trade in asset (s) and 
trade/savage amount (if applicable). 
 

 
 

Board approved February 18, 1997 
Policy Change – Board approved August 11, 1998 
Policy Revision – Board approved February 5, 2013 
Policy Revision – Board approved October 8, 2024 
                               Retroactive effective date 7-1-2023 



C:\Users\kjames\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\CZPU

3V0M\10-8-24 FIXED ASSET INVENTORY POLICY.doc 

VALUATION 
Fixed assets purchased with governmental fund expenditures should be recorded at historical 
cost and reported in the GFAAG.  The amount in GFAAG should equal the purchase price or 
construction costs plus other costs necessary to place the asset into intended use. 
 

Trade-ins* - If trade in has no value, the new asset cost is recorded as its purchase 
price.  
- If trade in amount is more than the trade in asset remaining value, 

then the value of the new asset is recorded as the purchase price plus 

the traded in asset remaining value.  

- If the trade in amount is less than the remaining value of the trade in 

asset, then the value of the new asset is recorded as the purchase price 

plus the trade in allowance.  

Gifts assets given to the County will be reported in GFAAG at fair market 
value (an amount determined mutually by the seller and purchaser). 

 
*Invoices for trade-ins should indicate the purchase price and trade-in amount allowed. 

PHYSICAL INVENTORY 
 

Physical inventories will be taken at least, every two years of fixed assets purchased from all 
funding sources, and the results of the physical inventory reconciled to the County’s fixed asset 
records reported in the financial statements.  The Board of Supervisors shall be responsible for 
completing the physical inventory for the county. 
 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is: 
 
A. To comply with Governmental Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting (GAAFR). 
B. To have an inventory of Woodbury County property for the purpose of better 

management of County assets. 
C. To have inventory data available in the event of fire or other natural disaster. 
 
Board Approved:  10/2/2024   __________________________ 

Matthew Ung, Chairman 
 
WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
___________________________  ___________________________ 
Dan Bittinger, II, Supervisor   Mark Nelson, Supervisor 
  
___________________________  ___________________________ 
Keith Radig, Supervisor    Jeremy Taylor, Supervisor 
  
 
Attest: 
____________________________   
Patrick F. Gill, County Auditor  









WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

10/2/24 10/8/24 4:45

Daniel J. Priestley

The Board of Supervisors will hold a public hearing at 4:45 PM to discuss a proposed Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment to rezone
a 1.14-acre portion of the property owned by Jimmie L. and Renee T. Colyer located on Parcel #884726200002 in the NW ¼ of the
NE ¼ of Section 26, T88N R47W (Woodbury Township) from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural Estates (AE)
Zoning District.

Following the public hearing, the Board may defer consideration of the proposal; or reject the proposal; or proceed to adopt an
ordinance approving the amendment to the zoning district map.

A 60% majority of the Board of Supervisors shall be required to adopt the proposed amendment of the zoning district map if the
owners of more than 20% of either, (a) the area of the subject property or (b) the area of real property lying within 500 feet of the
subject property file a written objection prior to the conclusion of the public hearing.

The Board of Supervisors may impose restrictive conditions upon the approval of an amendment to the zoning district map if, before
the conclusion of the public hearing, the owner agrees to the conditions in writing.

The Sandra K. Baker Revocable Trust (Applicant: Sandra K. Baker) and Jimmie L. and Renee T. Colyer (Owners) have submitted
an application for a zoning ordinance map amendment to rezone a portion of the property (Parcel #884726200002) from the
Agricultural Preservation (AP) District to the Agricultural Estates (AE) District. The applicants seek to rezone a 1.14-acre portion of
this parcel, which will be split and combined with Lot 1 of the Baker Acres subdivision through the Woodbury County Assessor’s
combination process. A survey conducted by Al Fagan Land Surveying P.C. provides the legal description of the portion of land to
be conveyed to the Sandra K. Baker Revocable Trust. This 1.14-acre triangular portion is not eligible for development as a
standalone lot because it does not meet the requirements of the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance. In the purchase agreement,
Baker acknowledges that the property being acquired "is not a legal lot for building purposes and must be combined with their
existing adjacent parcel, described as Lot One (1) of Baker’s Acres." The rezoning is requested so that the new parcel’s zoning
matches that of Lot 1, facilitating the combination into a single parcel for tax purposes. This proposal has been properly noticed in
the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on September 12, 2024. The neighbors within 1000 FT have been duly notified via a
September 9, 2024 letter about the September 23, 2024 Zoning Commission public hearing and have been requested to comment.
Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and have been requested
to comment. No objections were received from the stakeholders. Based on the information received and the requirements set forth
in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval. It is the recommendation of staff
to approve this proposal. The Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval to the Board of Adjustment following their
public hearing on September 23, 2024 with the condition that the portion be combined with Lot 1 of Baker’s Acres subdivision.

PROPERTY DETAILS:
Parcel(s): 884726200002
Township/Range: T88N R47W (Woodbury)
Section: 26
Quarter: NW ¼ of the NE ¼
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Floodplain: Not in floodplain (Zone X)
Property Address: No address

a. Receive final report-Zoning Commission recommendation from 9/23/24 to approve Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment
(Rezone) from Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District on a portion of Parcel
#884726200002 for the Sandra K. Baker Revocable Trust (Applicant: Sandra K. Baker) and Jimmie L. and Renee T. Colyer
(Owners). b. Conduct 1st Public Hearing on the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from AP to AE on a portion of
Parcel #884726200002. c. Approve the 1st Reading of the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone)

✔

✔

✔

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

0

Receive final report and Zoning Commission recommendation from their 9/23/24 meeting.

Open and close the public hearing. (Set Time: 4:45 PM)

Conduct and approve the first reading of the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone).

The 2nd and 3rd public hearings and readings of the ordinance have been scheduled for Tuesday, 10/15/24
at 4:45 PM, and Tuesday, 10/22/24 at 4:45 PM, respectively.

a. Receive final report-Zoning Commission recommendation from 9/23/24 to approve Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from
Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District on a portion of Parcel #884726200002 for the Sandra K. Baker
Revocable Trust (Applicant: Sandra K. Baker) and Jimmie L. and Renee T. Colyer (Owners).

b. Conduct 1st Public Hearing on the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from AP to AE on a portion of Parcel #884726200002.

c. Approve the 1st Reading of the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone)



1 

 

 

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING 
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101 

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax) 

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator                                         Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk 
dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov 

 

REPORT – SEPTEMBER 24, 2024 
ZONING ORDINANCE MAP AMENDMENT (REZONE) FROM AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION (AP) TO AGRICULTURAL ESTATES (AE)  

APPLICATION DETAILS 
Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Sandra K. Baker Rev. Trust 

(Sandra K. Baker – Applicant) 
/ Jimmie L. and Renee T. 
Colyer (Owner) 

Application Type: Zoning Ordinance Map 
Amendment (Rezone) 

Current Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Requested Zoning 
District: 

Agricultural Estates (AE) 

Current Use: Bare Ground, Path to Field 
Proposed Use: To be added to Baker’s Acres 

Lot 1 
Average CSR Rating: 40.53 
Engineer/Surveyor: Alan Fagan, 712-539-1471 
Attorney: Joel D. Voss, 712-222-4105 
Pre-application Meeting: June 26, 2024 
Application Date: August 20, 2024 
Stakeholder Notification:  
Neighbors’ Notification: September 9, 2024 
Legal Publication: September 12, 2024 
Zoning Commission 
Public Hearing: 

September 23, 2024 

Board of Supervisors 
Public Hearings: 

October 8, 15, 22 all at 4:45 
PM 

 

PROPERTY DETAILS 
Parcel(s): 884726200002 
Township/Range: T88N R47W (Woodbury) 
Section: 26 
Quarter: NW ¼ of the NE ¼  
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Floodplain: Not in floodplain (Zone X) 
Property Address: No address 
Legal Description: 
PART OF THE N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4 OF SECTION 
26, TOWNSHIP 88 NORTH, RANGE 47 WEST OF THE 
5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, WOODBURY COUNTY, 
IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  BEGINNING AT 
THE N.W. CORNER OF LOT 1, BAKER’S ACRES, AN 
ADDITION TO WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA; THENCE 
S.0°00’19”E. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 
FOR 267.10 FEET TO THE S.W. CORNER OF SAID 
LOT 1; THENCE N.55°43’07”W. FOR 390.29 FEET; 
THENCE N.0°00’19”W. FOR 40.00 FEET TO THE 
NORTH LINE OF SAID N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4; 
THENCE N.88°42’30”E. ALONG SAID NORTH LINE 
FOR 322.55 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  
CONTAINING 1.14 ACRES.   SUBJECT TO AND 
TOGETHER WITH ANY AND ALL EASEMENTS, 
RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS. 
 
NOTE:  THE NORTH LINE OF SAID N.W.1/4 OF THE 
N.E.1/4 IS ASSUMED TO BEAR N.88°42’30”E. 

 

CONTENTS 
Summary  

Aerial Map / Survey Excerpt  

Applications / Attachments  

Plat of Survey  

Purchase Agreement  

Legal Description  

Proposed Ordinance Amendment  

Evaluation Criteria  

Legal Notification  

Public Comments  

Stakeholder Comments  

Supporting Documentation  
 

SUMMARY 
The Sandra K. Baker Revocable Trust (Applicant: Sandra K. Baker) and Jimmie L. and Renee T. Colyer (Owners) have submitted an application for a zoning 
ordinance map amendment to rezone a portion of the property (Parcel #884726200002) from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) District to the Agricultural Estates 
(AE) District. The applicants seek to rezone a 1.14-acre portion of this parcel, which will be split and combined with Lot 1 of the Baker Acres subdivision through the 
Woodbury County Assessor’s combination process.  A survey conducted by Al Fagan Land Surveying P.C. provides the legal description of the portion of land to be 
conveyed to the Sandra K. Baker Revocable Trust. This 1.14-acre triangular portion is not eligible for development as a standalone lot because it does not meet the 
requirements of the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance. In the purchase agreement, Baker acknowledges that the property being acquired "is not a legal lot for 
building purposes and must be combined with their existing adjacent parcel, described as Lot One (1) of Baker’s Acres." The rezoning is requested so that the new 
parcel’s zoning matches that of Lot 1, facilitating the combination into a single parcel for tax purposes.  This proposal has been properly noticed in the Sioux City 
Journal Legals Section on September 12, 2024.  The neighbors within 1000 FT have been duly notified via a September 9, 2024 letter about the September 23, 2024 
Zoning Commission public hearing and have been requested to comment.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have 
been notified and have been requested to comment.  No objections were received from the stakeholders.  Based on the information received and the requirements 
set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval.  It is the recommendation of staff to approve this 
proposal.  The Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval to the Board of Adjustment following their public hearing on September 23, 2024 with the 
condition that the portion be combined with Lot 1 of Baker’s Acres subdivision. 

AERIAL MAP SURVEY EXCERPT 

 
 

 
 

 

ZONING COMMISSION AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval of the conditional 
use request.  It is the recommendation of staff to approve the proposal.   
 
The Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval to the Board of Adjustment following their public hearing on September 23, 2024 with the condition that 
the portion be combined with Lot 1 of Baker’s Acres subdivision 

September 3, 2024



2 

 

 



3 

 



4 

 



5 

 

 



6 

 

 



7 

 



8 

 



9 

 



10 

 



11 

 



12 

 

 



13 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

PART OF THE N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4 OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 88 NORTH, RANGE 47 WEST OF 

THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  

BEGINNING AT THE N.W. CORNER OF LOT 1, BAKER’S ACRES, AN ADDITION TO WOODBURY 

COUNTY, IOWA; THENCE S.0°00’19”E. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 FOR 267.10 FEET 

TO THE S.W. CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE N.55°43’07”W. FOR 390.29 FEET; THENCE 

N.0°00’19”W. FOR 40.00 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4; THENCE 

N.88°42’30”E. ALONG SAID NORTH LINE FOR 322.55 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  

CONTAINING 1.14 ACRES.   SUBJECT TO AND TOGETHER WITH ANY AND ALL EASEMENTS, 

RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS. 

 

NOTE:  THE NORTH LINE OF SAID N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4 IS ASSUMED TO BEAR N.88°42’30”E. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



14 

 

 
Figure 1 - Draft - Subject to Changes throughout the review process. 



15 

 

 



16 

 

EVALUATION CRITERIA 

The Zoning Commission shall base their recommendations and the Board of Supervisors shall base their decision on any requested amendment 
of the zoning district map on the following criteria: 

 Conformance with the goals and objectives set forth in the approved general development plan for Woodbury County including the 
future land use map. 

  
There does not appear to be any conflicts with the Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2040. 
(https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/files/community_economic_development/woodbury_county_comprehensive_plan_2040_89417.pdf).  
This area is designated as rural residential on the future land use map thereby illustrating that this request is compatible with future land 
use goals and objectives.  This rezone is not expected to change any existing land use other than transferring ownership from one party to 
another. 

 
    
 

 Compatibility and conformance with the policies and plans of other agencies with respect to the subject property.                  

  
There does not appear to be any conflicts with the policies and plans of other agencies based on the information received.  

 

 Consideration of the Corn Suitability (CSR) of the property.                  

 

 

 
 
 
 



17 

 

 Compatibility with adjacent land uses.                  

  
The rezone to AE is compatible with the area residential uses.  The AE Zoning District retains much of the land use characteristics that are 
offered in the AP Zoning District.  The major difference between the two is that AE allows for more than two houses in a quarter-quarter 
section.  Additional homes in the area should not be adversely impacted by this change in zoning designation as this portion will be rezoned 
to the same designation in which they reside.   
 

 Compatibility with other physical and economic factors affecting or affected by the proposed rezoning. 

  
There does not appear to be any other additional compatibility issues with this location. 
 

 Any other relevant factors. 

  
As noted in the summary, the applicants seek to rezone a 1.14-acre portion of this parcel, which will be split and combined with Lot 1 of the 
Baker Acres subdivision through the Woodbury County Assessor’s combination process.  A survey conducted by Al Fagan Land Surveying 
P.C. provides the legal description of the portion of land to be conveyed to the Sandra K. Baker Revocable Trust. This 1.14-acre triangular 
portion is not eligible for development as a standalone lot because it does not meet the requirements of the Zoning and Subdivision 
Ordinance.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



18 

 

LEGAL NOTIFICATION  

 
 
 
 



19 

 

 
 



20 

 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION 

Total Property Owners within 1000 FT via Certified Abstractor’s 
Listing: 

9 

Notification Letter Date: September 9, 2024 

Public Hearing Board(s): Zoning Commission & Board of Supervisors 

Public Hearing Date: September 23, 2024 

Phone Inquiries: 0 

Written Inquiries: 0 

The names of the property owners are listed below.   

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting. 
 

 

 

PROPERTY 
OWNER(S) 

MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS 

Jimmie Lee Colyer and 
Renee T. Colyer 

1650 Old Hwy 141 Sgt. Bluff IA 51054 No comments received. 

James E. Waddell, 
Joseph F. Waddell, and 
Judith Scheer 

3183 Tyler Court Sioux Falls SD 57103-
6562 

No comments received. 

Bradley R. Jochum, 
Angela M. Jochum, 
Timothy Ryan 
McWilliams, and Stacey 
L. McWilliams 

2498 Carroll Ave. Salix IA 51052 No comments received. 

Trustees of the Sandra K. 
Baker Revocable Trust 

1997 Carroll Ave. Sgt. Bluff IA 51054-
8042 

No comments received. 

Alexis M. Moore and 
Dylan M. Moore 

2616 So. Cornelia 
St. 

Sioux City IA 51106 No comments received. 

Richard G. Speed and 
Cindy S. Speed 

2009 Carroll Ave. Sgt. Bluff IA 51054-
8042 

No comments received. 

Wendel Real Estate, LLC 26638 Wirt Plaza Waterloo NE 68069-
5860 

No comments received. 

Iowa Natural Heritage 
Foundation 

505 5th Ave., Ste. 
444 

Des 
Moines 

IA 50309 No comments received. 

Richardson Family 
Farms, LLC 

421 E. Main St. Lawton IA 51030 No comments received. 

 

 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS 
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments received. 
CITY OF ANTHON: No comments received. 
FIBERCOMM: No comments received. 
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments received. 
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments received. 
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments received. 
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments received. 
LONGLINES: No comments received. 
LUMEN: No comments received. 
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments received. 
MILLER TOWNSHIP: No comments received. 
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the attached proposed rezoning application for MEC electric and we have; No conflicts. – 

Casey Meinen, 9/4/24. 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments received. 
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments received. 
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments received. 
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request.  NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 9/10/24. 

NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments received. 
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments received. 
WIATEL: No comments received. 
WINNEBAGO TRIBE: Thank you for your Section 106 correspondence regarding this project.  While it has been determined that 

this project will not impact any identified sites, it is situated on or near land historically inhabited or traversed 
by our ancestors. Should any findings arise, please reach out to THPO Sunshine Thomas-Bear at (402) 257-



21 

 

5587 or via e-mail at sunshine.bear@winnebagotribe.com. Should you have any inquiries, do not hesitate to 
contact our office. – Gayla Whitewater, 9/3/24. 

WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments received. 
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No issues here. – Daniel Heissel, 9/3/24. 

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments received. 
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments received. 
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: I have no concerns with the proposed zoning change.   It would appear to be consistent with the adjacent 

land zoning and use. – Mark Nahra, 9/11/24. 

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments.  Thank you. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 9/3/24. 

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
(REC): 

No comments received. 

WOODBURY COUNTY SHERIFF: No comments received. 
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this proposed rezoning request. 9/5/24. 

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: No comments received. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



22 

 

PARCEL REPORT(S) 

 



23 

 

ZONING MAP 

 



24 

 

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP 

 
 

BASE FLOOD ELEVATION DATA 
Not in floodplain.  No data to report. 



25 

 

SOIL MAP(S) 

 



26 

 

SOIL REPORT(S) 

 
 

ELEVATION MAP 

 
 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

10/03/2024 10/08/2024

Supervsr. Bittinger/Anna Bertrand

On February 13, 2024, Anna Bertrand presented that Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) is requesting two years of funding in
the amount of $242,648 per year ($485,296 over a two-year period) to fund 3 F.T.E. positions in alignment with the recommended
Opioid Remediation Settlement approved uses guidelines.

Today's agenda item is to determine the exact amount of funding for the proposal from Sky Ranch Behavioral Services.

Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) is requesting two years of funding in the amount of $242,648 per year ($485,296 over a
two-year period). SRBS is requesting funding to support and address two key needs and priorities in the Siouxland area. 1.
Connecting Individuals to Care and Addressing the Needs of Criminal Justice Involved Persons, and 2. Supporting People in
Treatment and Recovery with Peer Recovery Services. Both areas of focus are highlighted priorities in the Opioid Remediation
Funding Guidance in Part I Treatment, Items B, C, and D.

Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) will implement access and connections to care for the general community of Woodbury
County and for individuals (youth and adults) who are Criminal Justice Involved. This is a critical need for Woodbury County based
on current substance use trends and the increasing crisis in mental health for youth and adults.

See backup materials.

Opioid Remediation Settlement Request and Proposal from Sky Ranch Behavorial Services for 3 
F.T.E. positions. 

✔

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) is requesting two years of funding in the amount of $242,648 per year ($485,296 over a 
two-year period) to fund 3 positions per year, program materials, certifications, technology needs, etc. 

The Opioid Remediation Settlement Fund has approximately $1,000,549.88 at this moment(09/24/2024). If the full two-year amount 
is awarded, the new balance would be approximately $515,253.88

See backup materials for a detailed breakdown of funding needs. 

Fund 75% of one year of the request. This would result in $181,986 of funding. 

Approve funding Sky Ranch Behavorial Services request in the amount of $181,986.



 

  
 

1 
 

Woodbury County Board of Supervisors 

Request for Funding- Opioid Remediation Settlement Funding 

Creating Access/Connections to Care and Peer Recovery Support Services  

Proposed by Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) 

Draft Revised: 2/1/2024 

Proposal Narrative 

Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) is requesting two years of funding in the amount of 

$242,648 per year ($485,296 over a two-year period). SRBS is requesting funding to support and address 

two key needs and priorities in the Siouxland area. 1. Connecting Individuals to Care and Addressing the 

Needs of Criminal Justice Involved Persons, and 2. Supporting People in Treatment and Recovery with 

Peer Recovery Services.  Both areas of focus are highlighted priorities in the in the Opioid Remediation 

Funding Guidance in Part I Treatment, Items B, C, and D. 

1. Connections to Care and/or Addressing the Needs to Criminal Justice Involved Persons with 

Opioid Use Disorder, Substance Use Disorder, Co-Occurring Disorder.  (Opioid Remediation 

Priority Part 1 Treatment Items C & D) 

Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) will implement access and connections to care for the general 

community of Woodbury County and for individuals (youth and adults) who are Criminal Justice 

Involved. This is a critical need for Woodbury County based on current substance use trends and the 

increasing crisis in mental health for youth and adults.  Many youth and adults do not receive access to 

substance use disorder and/or mental health care due to one or more of the following reasons: 

• Lack of knowledge about how to access care. 

• Challenges navigating the current substance use disorder and/or mental health system of care 

due to barriers related to insurance, shortage of addiction and mental health professionals, 

youth struggling to get parental resources to support care, and overall stigma about addressing 

substance use or mental health issues.  

• Crisis- when individuals are faced with crisis in substance use or mental health, it is often difficult 

to navigate the complex system of care. 

• Limited options to access help or resources after school and/or in the evenings. 

SRBS will launch an open access, walk in access and navigation service for a minimum of 15 hours per 

week, including at least one evening and/or weekend access day for connecting youth, adults, and/or 

families to SUD care.  Proposed open access hours include: Mondays and Wednesdays from 2 until 6 PM, 

Thursdays from 3 PM until 8 PM, and/or Saturdays from 10 AM until 12 PM.  In addition, SRBS will 

provide phone-based support for individuals needing resources and/or questions answered regarding 



 

  
 

2 
 

accessing substance use and/or mental health care.  In addition, SRBS will provide both open access and 

scheduled SUD assessment services for individuals wanting to access care.  Within six months of 

implementation, SRBS will also offer open access and scheduled mental health assessment services for 

individuals wanting to access care. 

Open access, phone, and scheduled navigation services will include: 

o Answering questions and providing general information about substance use and/or mental 

health issues. 

o Education about how to respond in an opioid crisis, substance use crisis, and mental health crisis 

o General screening for safety, substance use, and mental health. 

o Assistance and support with navigating the steps to access substance use and/or mental health 

care for youth, adults, and/or family members. 

o Assistance with understanding the steps and navigating substance use and/or mental health 

commitments. 

o Providing connections to community-based and culturally responsive resources to support 

individuals with substance use and/or mental health issues. 

o Provision of both online and community-based resources, including referral and warm-handoff. 

o Delivering walk in and scheduled substance use disorder assessments. Mental health 

assessments to be added within six months. 

Connections to Care via access and navigation services will be provided by a full time Substance Use and 

Mental Health Access Navigator who will be a Certified Alcohol and Drug Counselor (CADC) with 

expertise in substance use and co-occurring mental health issues. They will allocate their time between 

open access/ walk in services, phone consultation, and individual navigation and assessment services. 

This person will provide phone, in-person, and community-based access and navigation support. 

2. Support People in Treatment and Recovery with Peer Recovery Services (Opioid Remediation 

Priority Part 1 Treatment Items C & D) 

SRBS will launch peer recovery services in two specific populations: 

• Peer Recovery Support Specialist to serve youth up to 17 years of age; and,  

• Peer Recovery Support Specialist to serve adults identified in the Woodbury Family 

Treatment Court. 

SRBS will recruit and hire (2.0 FTE) peer recovery support specialists who will provide outreach 

and engagement in the community, homes, and schools. The identified populations are those 

experiencing substance use, mental health, and/or co-occurring issues and symptoms. The role of the 

peer recovery support specialists will be to provide advocacy, support in navigating and/or accessing the 

resources and options within the recovery community, and to help address basic needs in order to 

enhance their overall wellness.  “When one rises, we all rise,” which serves as the motto of the former 

National Association of Drug Court Professionals (NADCP), now All Rise.  The value of increasing the 



 

  
 

3 
 

number of peer recovery supports in our community has demonstrated a reduction in hospital admission 

rates and longer community tenure (Chinman, Weingarten, Stayner, & Davidson, 2001; Davidson, et  al., 

2012; Forchuk, Martin, Chan, & Jenson, 2005; Min, Whitecraft, Rothbard, Salzer,  2007), as well as 

decreased symptoms of psychosis, depression, and substance use (Davidson, et  al., 2012).  The benefit 

of Peer Recovery Support for our community is vast. 

Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) is uniquely qualified to support the supervision of the Peer 

Recovery Supports, as the agency has expertise in an outpatient, community-based substance use and 

mental health services provider setting.  While SRBS serves youth, adults, and families, specialized 

outreach and services are focused on school aged youth in area schools and that are justice-involved 

youth.   

According to SAMHSA, “peer support workers are people who have been successful in the 

recovery process and who help others experiencing similar situations.  Through shared understanding, 

respect, and mutual empowerment, peer support workers help people become and stay engaged in the 

recovery process and reduce the likelihood of relapse".  https://www.samhsa.gov/brss-tacs/recovery-support-

tools/peers#:~:text=Peer%20support%20workers%20are%20people,reduce%20the%20likelihood%20of%20relapse  

The goal will be offering support for the identified population to engage in recommended 

treatment services, in community-based substance use, mental health, and/or co-occurring disorders 

services. Individuals who are impacted by opioid use will be prioritized; however, any person with any 

substance use and/or mental health symptoms will be served.  In addition to outreach, education, 

screening and engagement, peer recovery support specialists will provide recovery support services to 

individuals who are engaged in outpatient and/or inpatient substance use disorder treatment, mental 

health therapy, and/or co-occurring services.  With this in mind, some additional goals/tasks of recovery 

coaches are to help improve participation and engagement in treatment interventions through peer 

recovery coaching, help with transportation to services, provide outreach, and to facilitate engagement 

in recovery support activities in the community.   

Eligibility for the Peer Recovery Support Specialist positions would be individuals who are an 

adult (18 or older) who have been free from substance use for a minimum of 12 months and have lived 

recovery experience in substance use and/or mental health recovery.  

“Peer Support Specialists bring their own personal knowledge of what it is like to live and thrive 

with mental health conditions and substance use disorders.  They support people’s progress 

towards recovery and self-determined lives by sharing vital experiential information and real 

examples of the power of recovery.  The sense of mutuality created through thoughtful sharing of 

experience is influential in modeling recovery and offering hope (Davidson, Bellamy, Guy, & Miller, 

2012).  

SRBS proposes to outreach to a minimum of 120 individuals per 12-month calendar year and a 

minimum of 90 individuals per year will be formally enrolled in peer recovery support services.   

https://www.samhsa.gov/brss-tacs/recovery-support-tools/peers#:~:text=Peer%20support%20workers%20are%20people,reduce%20the%20likelihood%20of%20relapse
https://www.samhsa.gov/brss-tacs/recovery-support-tools/peers#:~:text=Peer%20support%20workers%20are%20people,reduce%20the%20likelihood%20of%20relapse


 

  
 

4 
 

Sustainability will be achieved within two years through certification as an outpatient mental 

health and/or substance use peer recovery support provider through IHHS with certification from the 

Iowa Board of Certification or other designated entity.  SRBS is well positioned to do this based on being 

an established IHHS licensed substance-use disorder provider and certified outpatient mental health 

services provider.   

About Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS)  

Sky Ranch Behavioral Services opened in 1987 as Sky Ranch for Boys to provide aftercare 

services to juveniles reentering the Siouxland community from their treatment facility. Since the physical 

ranch’s closure in 2011, the agency rebranded as SRBS and continues to provide behavioral health 

services. In 2019, SRBS added Substance Use and Problem Gambling Disorders Outpatient Treatment for 

adolescents and adults. In 2023, SRBS achieved certification as an Outpatient Mental Health Services 

provider. The current focus is on helping youth improve their lives with expansive and new community-

based programs of education classes, prevention/diversion, groups, individual and family counseling. 

Outcomes focus on reduced substance use and enhanced mental health, coping skills, functioning, and 

overall well-being.  SRBS is led by executive director Anna Bertrand.  Siouxland Human Investment 

Partnership (SHIP) serves as the employer of record and fiscal agent for SRBS. 

Budget 

Two Year Budget Proposal  

Line Items Year 1 Year 2 

Peer Recovery Specialist (2.0 FTE) $17 per hour at = $35,360 @ 2 
years = $70,720 

  

Supervisor, TBA Individual and Group Supervision .25 FTE of 
$56,000 = $14,000  

  

Substance Use and Mental Health Access Navigator 1.0 FTE @ 
$48,000  

  

Total Personnel  $132,720 $132,720 

Fringe Benefits and Employer of Record 45% of total Salaries = 
$64,369 

  

Total Fringe Benefits $64,369 $64,369 

Office Space for 3.0 FTE and Open Access Hub for a minimum of 
15 hours per week ($600 @ 12 months)  

  

Total Office Space $7,200 $7,200 

Office Supplies $500 per year   

Technology $1000 per year @ 3.0 =$3,000   

Total Supplies & Technology $3,500 $3,500 

Transportation and Parking -Parking and Mileage for staff 
transporting participants to recovery support $5,000 

  

Total Transportation $5,000 $5,000 



 

  
 

5 
 

Training, Continuing Education, Certification for Peer Recovery 
Sustainability $3,000 

  

Total Training & Sustainability $3,000 $3,000 

Basic and Emergent Needs for Participants (food, emergency 
needs, school supplies, recovery support tools) $2,400 

  

Resources to Support Navigation and Access (filing fees, 
transportation, emergency co-pays) $2,400 

  

Total Program Supplies/ Basic Needs $4,800 $4,800 

Total Expenses $220,589 $220,589 

Indirect/ Administration – Fiscal Agent Services provided by 
Siouxland Human Investment Partnership (SHIP) (de minimus rate 
which equals 10% of total expenses $220,589)  

  

Total Indirect $22,059 $22,059 

Total $242,648 $242,648 

 

 
















	Name: Ryan Chytka
	Department: Building Services
	Estimated Value: $500
	GoveDeals ID: 
	Description: 1. Heavy duty desk / workstations used in the WCICC data center.  One is 14 feet.  One is 6 feet.  Metal frame, metal backboard.  2. Aluminum computer racks, various sizes.  Removed from WCICC data center.  
	Authorized Representative: [Building Services Director]
	Phone: 712-279-6539
	Auction Reserve: 0
	Location: Courthouse
	County Asset #: 
	Serial/VIN: 
	Year: 
	Make/Model: 
	Notes: Aluminum with no bids will be scrapped.
	Sale Price: 
	Sale Date: 
	Date: 10/8/24


